Public Document Pack



Place and Resources Overview Committee

Date: Thursday, 10 February 2022

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: MS Teams Live Event

Membership: (Quorum 3)

Carole Jones (Chairman), Les Fry (Vice-Chairman), Pauline Batstone, Toni Coombs, Ryan Hope, Sherry Jespersen, Val Pothecary, Maria Roe, Andrew Starr and Roland Tarr

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall, Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ

For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services on 01305 252209 / lindsey.watson@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk



For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free public app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once downloaded select Dorset Council.

Due to the current coronavirus pandemic the Council has reviewed its approach to holding committee meetings. Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and listen to the debate online by using the following link: <u>Link to view Place and Resources Overview Committee live at 10.00am on 10 February 2022</u>

Members of the public wishing to view the meeting from an iphone, ipad or android phone will need to download the free Microsoft Team App to sign in as a Guest, it is advised to do this at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.

<u>Please note</u> that public speaking has been suspended. However Public Participation will continue by written submission only. Please see detail set out below.

Dorset Council is committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its business whenever possible. A recording of the meeting will be available on the council's website after the event.

Page No.

4 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

3 - 4

To receive questions or statements on the business of the committee from town and parish councils and members of the public.

Public speaking has been suspended for virtual committee meetings during the Covid-19 crisis and public participation will be dealt with through written submissions only.

Members of the public who live, work or represent an organisation within the Dorset Council area, may submit up to two questions or a statement of up to a maximum of 450 words. All submissions must be sent electronically to lindsey.watson@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by the deadline set out below. When submitting a question please indicate who the question is for and include your name, address and contact details. Questions and statements received in line with the council's rules for public participation will be published as a supplement to the agenda.

Questions will be read out by an officer of the council and a response given by the appropriate Portfolio Holder or officer at the meeting. All questions, statements and responses will be published in full within the minutes of the meeting. The deadline for submission of the full text of a question or statement is 8.30am on Monday 7 February 2022.

Place and Resources Overview Committee - 10 February 2022

Agenda item 4 - Public Participation

Questions from Mike Carhart-Harris, resident and Wimborne Athletic Club member

As a Wimborne resident and member of a group (Wimborne Athletic Club) that uses QE Leisure Centre, I am deeply concerned about the recommendation that Dorset Council withdraws from the management of the centre. This would put well-used services for the school, community, clubs and vulnerable groups at grave risk of loss. This includes QE's swimming pool, crucial for giving children vital life-skills of swimming and water safety.

I would like to submit the following two questions addressed to Cllr Laura Miller at the Place and Resources Overview Committee on Thursday 10 February:

- 1. It is fair to ask whether the subsidy to QE Leisure Centre of £550,000 a year, a third of the council's leisure budget, represents value for money. However, it is not fair that the community of Wimborne and QE school could potentially lose vital health, fitness and sports services because of an historic funding anomaly rather than any proven lack of need or viability. As it is not clear from the report, can the council explain why the funding arrangement for QELC was allowed to become so disproportionate in comparison with Dorset's 7 other leisure centres?
- 2. Many Dorset leisure centres are managed in partnership with commercial leisure operators or social enterprises, or are wholly community owned, while continuing to be subsidised. However, the option for QE School to explore such an alternative operating model, which could ensure the continued availability of its existing facilities, is given little consideration as this would require ongoing subsidy. Rather than withdraw its funding from QELC entirely, why can the council not develop a more equitable distribution of subsidies that would enable all 8 existing leisure centres to continue to provide services to their communities?

Statement from Ross Bowell, Wimborne Academy Trust

Dorset Council's predecessor councils have operated joint use leisure facilities at Queen Elizabeth's School since 1974, and the current dual use agreement runs until 2086.

The school and trust's strong preference is that Dorset Council accepts the views of the overwhelming majority of respondents to the public consultation and retains the joint use arrangements for the benefit of the local community and the current and future pupils of the school.

Withdrawing from the agreement early may realise a saving for the Council's Place budget but it also has a direct cost of £279,500 per year of central government funding which will be removed from the Dedicated Schools Grant (see section 15).

However, as the Council seems determined to proceed, it must leave the school with a suitable facility.

This was recognised by the Corporate Director of Place in a meeting with the school and trust on 7 January 2021: "Dorset Council understands that there will be an upfront cost to re-provide at a reasonable standard. The revenue savings would offset this".

The exit proposals and capital sums set out in this paper are wholly inadequate to meet this commitment.

The Council and its predecessors have been the managers and majority users of QELC over nearly 50 years and have under-invested in maintenance and renewal. Many building services are original, dating back to the 1970s and 80s, are hugely inefficient, and are long overdue for replacement.

This is set out in detail in the April 2019 Dorset Property condition survey quoted in this paper, where the Council's own surveyors identified capital expenditure required of £1,165,720 to 2023/2024 and a further £714,050 in 2024/25. An independent survey would likely find the costs to be greater still.

The paper as presented makes a virtue of:

- opportunistically exploiting a contractual loophole to walk away from an arrangement made for community benefit that has lasted for almost 50 years and is due to run for over 60 more, and
- knowingly transferring existing liabilities away from the council on to the school, ultimately to the detriment of the education of pupils in Wimborne and East Dorset.

The Council should commission an independent condition survey, remodelling design and life-cycle costing services to properly establish the works required to re-provide at a reasonable standard for the school, and commit to funding the capital cost of these works.

The costs will be a small proportion of the value of the Place budget revenue savings over the medium term and will allow the Council to show that it is at least acting properly.